
1 of 7 

Chairperson:  Thomas Lutzow 
Vice-Chairperson:  Maria Perez 
Secretary:  Michael Davis 
Senior Executive Assistant:  Jodi Mapp, 257-5202 

MILWAUKEE COUNTY MENTAL HEALTH BOARD 

Thursday, August 23, 2018 - 8:00 A.M. 
Milwaukee County Zoo 

Peck Welcome Center Pavilion 
10001 West Bluemound Road 

MINUTES 

PRESENT: Michael Davis, Kathie Eilers, Rachel Forman, Sheri Johnson, Thomas Lutzow, 
Mary Neubauer, Maria Perez, Duncan Shrout, and Brenda Wesley 

EXCUSED: Walter Lanier and Jon Lehrmann 
ABSENT: Robert Curry 

SCHEDULED ITEMS: 

NOTE:  All Informational Items are Informational Only Unless Otherwise Directed by the 
Board. 

1. Welcome. 

Chairman Lutzow greeted Board Members and welcomed the audience to the August 23, 
2018, Mental Health Board meeting. 

2. Approval of the Minutes from the June 21, 2018, and July 12, 2018, Milwaukee 
County Mental Health Board Meeting and Budget Hearing. 

MOTION BY: (Forman) Approve the Minutes from the June 21, 2018, and 
July 12, 2018, Milwaukee County Mental Health Board Meeting 
and Budget Hearing.  8-0 

MOTION 2ND BY: (Davis) 
AYES: Davis, Eilers, Forman, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, Shrout, and 

Wesley – 8 
NOES: 0 

3. Universal Health Services Contract for the Provision of Acute Psychiatric Services 
and Update. 

Michael Lappen, Administrator, Behavioral Health Division (BHD) 

Mr. Lappen indicated contract negotiations with United Health Services (UHS) are 
approximately 95% complete.  Minutia related to insurance and UHS being a self-insured 
entity is an example of issues outstanding.  A final draft of the contract is expected within 

2



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

August 23, 2018 2 of 7 

the next couple of weeks.  Many of the provisions requested by BHD, such as being 
alerted and have the opportunity to secure beds if UHS is near capacity, remain in the 
contract.  UHS has submitted an acceptable financial model that is felt best addresses the 
needs of both the taxpayer and BHD.  All of the most challenging issues have been 
resolved but changes, no matter how minor, have to go through legal analysis.  A meeting 
will be scheduled with the Contract Advisory Team to review the contract and for 
discussion.  The goal is to hold a Special Meeting of the Board, along with a Special 
Finance Committee meeting, to be held in September. 

Questions and comments ensued. 

4. Administrative Update. 

Michael Lappen, Administrator, Behavioral Health Division (BHD) 

Mr. Lappen highlighted key activities and issues related to BHD operations.  He provided 
an update on BHD’s implementation of a best practice model for integrated care as a result 
of moving away from being a provider of inpatient acute psychiatric care and expanding 
community-wide access to high quality care.  He went on to explain how new contract 
performance measures and fee-for-service contract regulations will affect providers.  The 
addition of contract performance metrics was directed by the Board, fulfills Legislative Audit 
Bureau requirements, and ensures individuals receive high quality services. 

Mr. Lappen also provided an update on the latest activities of the City-County Heroin 
Opioid Cocaine Task Force and the community engagement sessions held in June, July, 
and August.  The intent of the community sessions was to explore expanding access to 
treatment.  There was overwhelming support to expand sober and bridge housing and 
same day access to Medication Assisted Treatment, both of which are currently being 
expanded in the BHD network and are addressed in the 2019 Proposed Budget. 

Questions and comments ensued. 

Item #s 5, 6, and 7 were considered together. 

5. Mental Health Board Finance Committee Professional Services Contracts 
Recommendations. 

Jennifer Bergersen, Chief Operations Officer, Behavioral Health Division 

 2018 Contract Amendment and 2019 Contract
 Clean Power, LLC

 2018 Contract Amendments
 New Resources Consulting dba Clinical Path Consulting
 Trempealeau County Health Care



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

August 23, 2018  3 of 7 

Professional Services Contracts focus on facility-based programming, supports functions 
that are critical to patient care, and are necessary to maintain hospital and crisis services 
licensure.  Background information was provided on the cleaning, consultation, and fiscal 
oversight services the contracted agencies provide.  An approval recommendation would 
be for 2017 and 2018 Contract Amendments and a 2019 Contract. 
 
Ms. Bergersen provided clarification regarding the 2019 Contract with Clean Power.  The 
contract was reopened to include revisions to the scope of work and an employee wage 
increase and incorporates performance measures and compliance indicators.  The 
Committee’s recommendation for approval would be for an adjustment for 2018, as well as 
the 2019 Contract. 
 
Mr. Lappen explained the Trempealeau County Health Care contract is for services 
provided for a client with exceptional needs who had previously been served at Mendota.  
Trempealeau provides a much less restrictive environment and is less expensive than the 
level of care delivered at Mendota. 
 
Questions and comments ensued. 
 
The Board was informed the Finance Committee unanimously agreed to recommend 
approval of the 2018 Contract Amendments and 2019 Contract delineated in the 
corresponding report to the Board. 
 

SEE ITEM 7 FOR BOARD ACTION 
 

6.  Mental Health Board Finance Committee Purchase-of-Service Contracts 
Recommendation. 
 
Amy Lorenz, Director, Community Access to Recovery Services, BHD 
 

 2018 Contract Amendments 
 
Purchase-of-Service Contracts for the Provision of Adult and Child Mental Health Services 
and Substance Use Disorder Services were reviewed.  An overview was provided detailing 
the various program contracts.  Approvals would be for 2018 Contract Amendments. 
 
For future reports, the Board requested to be provided with information related to vendors 
whose funds are supported by grant money. 
 
The Board was informed the Finance Committee unanimously agreed to recommend 
approval of the 2018 Purchase-of-Service Contract Amendments delineated in the 
corresponding report to the Board. 
 

SEE ITEM 7 FOR BOARD ACTION 
 



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

August 23, 2018 4 of 7 

7. Mental Health Board Finance Committee Fee-for-Service Agreements 
Recommendation. 

Fee-for-Service Agreements for the Provision of Adult and Child Mental Health Services 
and Substance Use Disorder Services were reviewed.  An overview was provided detailing 
the various program agreements, which provide a broad range of rehabilitation and support 
services to adults with mental health and/or substance use disorders and children with 
serious emotional disturbances. 

The Board was informed the Finance Committee unanimously agreed to recommend 
approval of Amendments to the 2018 Fee-for-Service Agreements delineated in the 
corresponding report to the Board. 

Board Member Neubauer requested the following corrections be made to Page 3 of the 
report:  1)  Whole Health Medical should be Whole Health Clinical Group and 2)  Outreach 
Community Health Associates should be Outreach Community Health Center. 

MOTION BY: (Perez) Approve the 2018 Professional Services Contract 
Amendments and 2019 Contract, the 2018 Purchase-of-Service 
Contract Amendments, and the 2018 Fee-for-Service Agreement 
Amendments as Delineated in the Corresponding Reports for  
Item #s 5, 6, and 7.  8-0 

MOTION 2ND BY: (Davis) 
AYES: Davis, Eilers, Forman, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, Shrout, 

and Wesley – 8 
NOES: 0 

8. 2017 Annual Environment of Care Program Report and 2018 Environment of Care 
Management Plans. 

Jennifer Bergersen, Chief Operations Officer, Behavioral Health Division 

Ms. Bergersen explained the report and management plans were brought before the 
Quality Committee in June and unanimously recommended for approval by the Board. 
She indicated revisions and changes have been identified in red print to clearly reflect 
updates. 

MOTION BY: (Eilers) Approve the Environment of Care 2017 Annual Report 
and 2018 Goals and Plans Recommendation.  8-0 

MOTION 2ND BY: (Neubauer) 
AYES: Davis, Eilers, Forman, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, Shrout, 

and Wesley - 8 
NOES: 0 



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

August 23, 2018 5 of 7 

9. Mental Health Board Governance on Strategic Planning Update. 

Brett Remington, Blue Rock WI 

Board Member Shrout, as a Strategic Planning Committee Member, provided an update on 
discussions from the Committee’s July 30, 2018, meeting.  The Committee’s immediate 
focus is the upcoming Board retreat.  Board Members should have received a self-
assessment survey from Mr. Remington.  Surveys must be completed and returned to 
Mr. Remington by Friday, August 24, 2018. 

Mr. Remington explained the purpose and importance of the Board retreat, which is the 
most effective and practical way to address any issues the Board faces.  It also provides 
an opportunity to build comradery. 

The Board’s first retreat will be held on Wednesday, September 26, 2018, at the Wisconsin 
Club, from 8 a.m. to 1 p.m. in the MacArthur Room on the third floor.  The agenda for the 
meeting will correspond with materials Board Members will receive in early September. 

Mr. Remington provided some background information on the self-assessment survey and 
emphasized the importance of completing the survey.  The results of the assessment will 
be consolidated and forwarded to Board Members along with the retreat agenda and 
materials. 

10.  Medical Executive Report and Credentialing and Privileging Recommendations. 

Dr. Shane Moisio, Medical Director, Behavioral Health Division 

MOTION BY: (Perez) Adjourn into Closed Session under the provisions of 
Wisconsin Statutes Section 19.85(1)(c) for the purpose of  
considering employment or performance evaluation data for  
public employees over which the Board has jurisdiction and  
exercises responsibility.  Some or all of the information   
discussed may also be subject to confidentiality under Section 
146.38, Stats. as it relates to Item 10.  At the conclusion of the  
Closed Session, the Board may reconvene in Open Session to  
take whatever action(s) it may deem necessary on the aforesaid 
item.  8-0 

MOTION 2ND BY: (Shrout) 
AYES: Davis, Eilers, Forman, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, Shrout, 

and Wesley – 8 
NOES: 0 

The Board convened into Closed Session at 8:54 a.m. to discuss Item 10 and reconvened 
back into Open Session at approximately 9:10 a.m.  The roll was taken, and all Board 
Members were present. 



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

August 23, 2018  6 of 7 

MOTION BY: (Shrout) Approve the Medical Staff Credentialing Report and  
   Medical Executive Committee Recommendations.  8-0 
MOTION 2ND BY: (Perez) 
AYES:  Davis, Eilers, Forman, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, Shrout, 
   and Wesley – 8 
NOES:  0 
 

11.  Medical Staff Organization Governing Body’s Adopted Changes to its Bylaws. 
 
Dr. Shane Moisio, Medical Director, Behavioral Health Division 
 
State statutes list the duties of the medical staff as it relates to having written rules and 
bylaws for governance of themselves.  The Medical Staff Organization, at its meeting of 
August 1, 2018, amended and adopted the bylaws, which ensures compliance.  Dr. Moisio 
described the amendments proposed in detail. 
 
Questions and comments ensued. 
 
MOTION BY: (Neubauer) Approve the Behavioral Health Division Medical Staff 
   Organization Bylaws as Amended.  8-0 
MOTION 2ND BY: (Forman) 
AYES:  Davis, Eilers, Forman, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, Shrout, 
   and Wesley – 8 
NOES:  0 
 

12.  Adjournment. 
 
MOTION BY: (Neubauer) Adjourn.  8-0 
MOTION 2ND BY: (Shrout) 
AYES:  Davis, Eilers, Forman, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, Shrout, 
   and Wesley – 8 
NOES:  0 
 

  



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

August 23, 2018  7 of 7 

This meeting was recorded.  The aforementioned agenda items were not necessarily 
considered in agenda order.  The official copy of these minutes and subject reports, along with 
the audio recording of this meeting, is available on the Milwaukee County Behavioral Health 
Division/Mental Health Board web page. 
 
Length of meeting:  8:04 a.m. to 9:30 a.m. 
 
Adjourned, 
 

 
 
 
Jodi Mapp 

Senior Executive Assistant 
Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 
 

The next meeting for the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board will be a Public Hearing 
on Thursday, September 27, 2018, @ 4:30 p.m. at the 

Washington Park Senior Center 
4420 West Vliet Street 

 
TOPIC:  Behavioral Health Division Topics/Services 

 
Visit the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board Web Page at: 

 
https://county.milwaukee.gov/EN/DHHS/About/Governance#MCMHBrecords 

 

 
The August 23, 2018, meeting minutes of the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 
are hereby submitted for approval at the next scheduled regular meeting of the 
Milwaukee County Mental Health Board. 
 
 
 

 
         
Michael Davis, Secretary 
Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 
 
 
 

https://county.milwaukee.gov/EN/DHHS/About/Governance#MCMHBrecords


1 of 3 

Chairperson:  Thomas Lutzow 
Vice-Chairperson:  Maria Perez 
Secretary:  Michael Davis 
Senior Executive Assistant:  Jodi Mapp, 257-5202 

SPECIAL MEETING 
MILWAUKEE COUNTY MENTAL HEALTH BOARD 

Wednesday, September 26, 2018 - 2:30 P.M. 
Milwaukee Public Museum 

Kohl’s Garden Gallery 
800 West Wells Street 

MINUTES 

PRESENT: Robert Curry, Michael Davis, *Kathie Eilers, Rachel Forman, Walter Lanier, 
Thomas Lutzow, Mary Neubauer, Maria Perez, Duncan Shrout, and 
Brenda Wesley 

EXCUSED: Sheri Johnson and Jon Lehrmann 

*Board Member Kathie Eilers was not present at the time the roll was called but joined the
meeting shortly thereafter. 

SCHEDULED ITEMS: 

NOTE:  All Informational Items are Informational Only Unless Otherwise Directed by the 
Board. 

1. Welcome. 

Chairman Lutzow greeted Board Members and welcomed the audience to the 
September 26, 2018, Special Meeting of the Mental Health Board. 

2. Mental Health Board Finance Committee Fee-for-Service Agreement 
Recommendation. 

Michael Lappen, Administrator, Behavioral Health Division 
Teig Whaley-Smith, Director, Department of Administrative Services 

 Universal Health Services

Finance Committee Chairwoman Perez informed the Board the Finance Committee 
unanimously recommends approval of the Fee-for-Service Agreement Contract with 
Universal Health Services. 

Questions and comments ensued. 



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

September 26, 2018  2 of 3 

Chairman Lutzow summarized the years of hard work and level of due diligence that went 
into crafting the contract. 
 
MOTION BY: (Perez) Approve the Fee-for-Service Agreement Contract with  
   Universal Health Services.  10-0 
MOTION 2ND BY: (Shrout) 
AYES:  Curry, Davis, Eilers, Forman, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez,  
   Shrout, and Wesley – 10 
NOES:  0 
 

3.  Adjournment. 
 
MOTION BY: (Neubauer) Adjourn.  10-0 
MOTION 2ND BY: (Perez) 
AYES:  Curry, Davis, Eilers, Forman, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez,  
   Shrout, and Wesley – 10 
NOES:  0 
 

This meeting was recorded.  The official copy of these minutes and subject reports, along with 
the audio recording of this meeting, is available on the Milwaukee County Behavioral Health 
Division/Mental Health Board web page. 
 
Length of meeting:  2:58 p.m. to 3:15 p.m. 
 
Adjourned, 
 

 
 
 
Jodi Mapp 

Senior Executive Assistant 
Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 
 

The next meeting for the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board will be a Public Hearing 
on Thursday, September 27, 2018, @ 4:30 p.m. at the 

Washington Park Senior Center 
4420 West Vliet Street 

 
TOPIC:  Behavioral Health Division Topics/Services 

 
Visit the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board Web Page at: 

https://county.milwaukee.gov/EN/DHHS/About/Governance#MCMHBrecords 

 

 

https://county.milwaukee.gov/EN/DHHS/About/Governance#MCMHBrecords


SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

September 26, 2018  3 of 3 

 
The September 26, 2018, minutes of the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 
Special Meeting are hereby submitted for approval at the next scheduled regular 
meeting of the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board. 
 
 

 
         
Michael Davis, Secretary 
Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 
 
 



Chairperson:  Thomas Lutzow 
Vice-Chairperson:  Maria Perez 
Secretary:  Michael Davis 
Senior Executive Assistant:  Jodi Mapp, 257-5202 

MILWAUKEE COUNTY MENTAL HEALTH BOARD 
PUBLIC HEARING 

Thursday, September 27, 2018 - 4:30 P.M. 
Washington Park Senior Center 

4420 West Vliet Street 

MINUTES 

PRESENT: *Michael Davis, Kathie Eilers, Rachel Forman, Sheri Johnson, *Walter Lanier, Jon 
Lehrmann, Thomas Lutzow, Mary Neubauer, Maria Perez, and Duncan Shrout 

ABSENT: Robert Curry and Brenda Wesley 

*Board Members Michael Davis and Walter Lanier were not present at the time the roll was
called but joined the meeting shortly thereafter. 

SCHEDULED ITEMS: 

NOTE:  All Informational Items are Informational Only Unless Otherwise Directed by the 
Board. 

1. Welcome. 

Chairman Lutzow greeted Board Members and welcomed the audience to the 
September 27, 2018, Mental Health Board Public Hearing. 

2. Public Comment on Behavioral Health Division Topics/Services. 

The meeting opened for public comment.  The following individuals appeared and 
provided comments: 

Eugene Barufkin 
Paul Mozina 
Maria I. Nogueron, Mental Health Task Force 
Jamie Lucas, Wisconsin Federation of Nurses and Healthcare Professionals 
Clay Ecklund 



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

September 27, 2018 2 of 2 

3. Adjournment. 

MOTION BY: (Neubauer) Adjourn.  8-0 
MOTION 2ND BY: (Eilers) 
AYES: Davis, Eilers, Forman, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, 

and Shrout – 8 
NOES: 0 

This meeting was recorded.  The official copy of these minutes and subject reports, along with 
the audio recording of this meeting, is available on the Milwaukee County Behavioral Health 
Division/Mental Health Board web page. 

Length of meeting:  4:33 p.m. to 5:15 p.m. 

Adjourned, 

Jodi Mapp
Senior Executive Assistant 
Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

The next regular meeting for the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board is 
Thursday, October 25, 2018, @ 8:00 a.m. at the 

Zoofari Conference Center 
9715 Bluemound Road 

Visit the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board Web Page at: 

https://county.milwaukee.gov/EN/DHHS/About/Governance#MCMHBrecords 

The September 27, 2018, minutes of the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board Public 
Hearing are hereby submitted for approval at the next scheduled regular meeting of the 
Milwaukee County Mental Health Board. 

Michael Davis, Secretary 
Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

https://county.milwaukee.gov/EN/DHHS/About/Governance#MCMHBrecords


4









COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE 

Behavioral Health Division Administration 

Inter-Office Communication 

DATE: August 13, 2018 

TO: Thomas Lutzow, Chairman 
Maria Perez, Chairwoman, Finance Committee 
Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

FROM:  Mary Jo Meyers, Director, Department of Health and Human Services 
Approved by Michael Lappen, Administrator, Behavioral Health Division 

SUBJECT: Approval Protocol for Requests for Projects Funded through Capital and 
Operational Reserve Funds 

Background 

2013 Act 203 created the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board (MHB), enacted by Wis. Stat. 
§ 51.41. Among its provisions is a requirement that at year-end, any unexpended /
unencumbered mental health budget funds be held by the Milwaukee County Treasurer in a 
mental health reserve fund. Once that fund reaches a $10 million balance, any surplus amounts 
may be used for “any mental health function, program, or service in Milwaukee County.” Wis. 
Stat. § 51.41(4)(d):  

The treasurer in Milwaukee County shall hold any moneys that at the end of a fiscal 
year have not been expended or encumbered from the amount budgeted for 
mental health functions, programs, and services in a mental health reserve fund. 
Moneys in the reserve fund may be used at any time to cover deficits in the 
Milwaukee County mental health budget. If the amount in the reserve fund 
exceeds $10,000,000, the amount exceeding $10,000,000 may be used at any time 
for any mental health function, program, or service in Milwaukee County. Moneys 
in the reserve fund may be used only for the purposes described in this paragraph. 

2013 Act 203 shifted authority for the building reserve fund from the County Board to 
the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board. Wis. Stat. § 46.18(13): 

In Milwaukee County, the Milwaukee County mental health board, for mental 
health infirmary structures and equipment, shall ensure the maintenance, as a 
segregated cash reserve, of an annual charge of 2 percent of the original cost of 
new construction or purchase or of the appraised value of existing mental health 
infirmary structures and equipment. If the infirmary or any of its equipment is 
replaced, any net cost of replacement in excess of the original cost is subject to an 
annual charge of 2%... In Milwaukee County, the Milwaukee County mental health 

5



board may require to be appropriated from reserve sums for mental health 
infirmaries to be expended for the enlargement, modernization, or replacement of 
a mental health infirmary and its equipment. 

Discussion 

2013 Act 203 established the operating and capital reserve funds, but does not outline a 
procedure for accessing the funds. 

To access reserve funds, the Behavioral Health Division (BHD) Administrator will submit a 
memorandum to the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board (MCMHB) Finance Committee 
requesting the release of funds.  In the memo, BHD will outline the project(s) being funded, the 
amount being requested, justification as to why the project(s) are appropriate for reserve funds, 
and the anticipated impact on reserve funds. 

The Finance Committee will review the request and make a recommendation to the full MCMHB. 
If the MCMHB approves of the request, BHD will submit a fund transfer (See Attachment A) to the 
Department of Administrative Services requesting an amendment to the current year budget.  In 
the fund transfer document, expenses will be increased by the anticipated current year cost of the 
approved project(s) to be funded through reserves. 

The Finance Committee will receive quarterly updates on reserve balances and the status of 
approved projects funded from reserves (See Attachment B). 

_______________________________ 
Mary Jo Meyers, Director 
Department of Health and Human Services 









FISCAL YEAR DEPT. NO.

1699 R4E 2019 6300

DEPARTMENT NAME

No No X

DOA

Line 

No. Fund Agency Org. Unit

Revenue/O

bject Activity

Balance 

Sheet OBJECT CODE DESCRIPTION Transfer Request

Account 

Modification

TO 1

(Credit) 2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

-$     -$     

FROM 1

(Debit) 2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

-$     -$     

TRANSFER NO.

AP EB RB

TITLESIGNATURE OF DEPARTMENT HEAD

INSTRUCTIONS:  REFER TO MILW. COUNTY 

ADMINISTRATIVE MANUAL SECTION 4.05 FOR 

INSTRUCTIONS ON PREPARING THIS FORM.

ACCOUNT DISTRIBUTION

Were Appropriations Requested Below Denied For The Current Budget?

APPROPRIATION TRANSFER REQUEST

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

E X P L A N A T I O N

TYPE OF TRANSFER

FROM TOTALS (Debit)

TO TOTALS (Credit)

Finance CommitteeCounty Executive

IF ADDITIONAL SPACE IS REQUIRED, PLEASE ATTACH ADDITIONAL PAGES.

County Board

MODIFY

DISAPPROVE

A

c

t

i

o

n

DATE OF REQUEST

DATE

APPROVE

Dept. of Administration

O:\sprdsht\support\jmsdoc\1 frm fundtransfer

EXAMPLE:  FUND TRANSFER

Attachment A

JodiMapp
Highlight



BHD Reserves:

Account Summaries 12/31/2016 2017 Contribution 12/31/2017 Proj. 2018 Contribution* Proj 12/31/2018 Balance

785 Encumbrance Reserve 1,473,845$   (555,710)$   918,135$   918,135$   

904 Wrap Reserve 6,860,245$   1,427,993$   8,288,238$   8,288,238$   

906 Capital Reserve 3,540,000$   1,180,000$   4,720,000$   4,720,000$   

741 Carryover Reserve -$   -$   

905 Surplus (Operational) Reserve 19,568,857$   1,744,030$   21,312,887$   (400,000)$   20,912,887$   

Total Reserves 31,442,947$   3,796,313$   35,239,260$   (400,000)$   34,839,260$   

Projected Balance Detail - Operational Reserve

Project A -$   -$   

Project B -$   -$   

Project C -$   -$   

Anticipated Year End Contribution (Withdrawal) 1,744,030 (400,000)$   

905 Surplus (Operational) Reserve Total 19,568,857$   1,744,030$   21,312,887$   (400,000)$   20,912,887$   

Projected Balance Detail - Capital Reserve

Capital Project A -$   -$   

Capital Project B -$   -$   

Capital Project C -$   -$   

Anticipated Year End Contribution (Withdrawal) 1,180,000$   1,180,000$   

906 Capital Reserve Total 3,540,000$   1,180,000$   4,720,000$   1,180,000$   5,900,000$   

Attachment B

EXAMPLE:  BHD RESERVE BALANCE REPORT



COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE 

Behavioral Health Division Administration 

Inter-Office Communication  

DATE: October 1, 2018 

TO: Thomas Lutzow, Chairman – Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

FROM: Mary Jo Meyers, Director, Department of Health and Human Services 

Approved by Michael Lappen, Administrator, Behavioral Health Division 

SUBJECT:  Report from the Director, Department of Health and Human Services, 

Requesting Authorization to Execute 2018 Professional Services Contract 

Amendments for Staffing and Recruitment, Food, Grant Writing, 

Technology, and Public Safety Services 

Issue 

Wisconsin Statute 51.41(10) requires approval for any contract related to mental health 

(substance use disorder) with a value of at least $100,000.  No contract or contract adjustment 

shall take effect until approved by the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board.  Per the statute, 

the Director of the Department of Health and Human Services is requesting authorization for 

BHD/CARS/Wraparound/Inpatient Hospital to execute mental health and substance use 

contracts for 2019. 

Background 

Approval of the recommended contract allocations will allow BHD/CARS/Wraparound/Inpatient 

Hospital to provide a broad range of rehabilitation and support services to adults with mental 

health and/or substance use disorders and children with serious emotional disturbances. 

Professional Services Contracts 

AMN Healthcare Inc. (dba Merritt Hawkins) - $20,000 

The Behavioral Health Division is seeking an amendment to the current Agreement with AMN 

Healthcare Inc., dba Merritt Hawkins.  Contractor was retained in February 2016 to recruit full-

time psychiatrists for Acute Inpatient.  Services include provision of full-service recruitment of 

Board eligible psychiatrists for permanent employment including on-site consultation, 

advertising campaign(s), sourcing, screening and prescreening qualified candidates, coordination 

of candidate travel and interviews, assistance with candidate relocation upon acceptance and 

other usual and customary matters.  Inpatient vacancies have necessitated the continued use of 

locum tenens staffing to fulfill essential psychiatrist needs, but through the efforts of this firm, a 

total of five psychiatrists have now been placed, including most recently, a new hire in 

September and one scheduled to start early November.  This shall be the third amendment and 

will cover the completion fee(s) and estimated expenses associated with remaining retained 

6



2 

searches.  We are seeking to amend the existing agreement by $20,000 for a new not to exceed 

amount of $254,950 and to extend the end date through 12/31/2019. 

ARAMARK Correctional Services, LLC - $673,397 

ARAMARK Correctional Services, LLC prepares and delivers food for the BHD inpatient and 

outpatient population.  

Evaluation Research Services - $173,400 

Evaluation Research Services provides grant management coordination, inclusive of grant 

writing services to the Milwaukee County Behavioral Health Division. Using a Lifecycle 

management approach to grant management, processes and infrastructure is developed and 

implemented to manage grant proposals from beginning, or “pre-award”, stage of a project 

implementation, or “post-award”, through the termination, or closeout, of an award. These funds 

are being requested for 2019. The total contract amount will be $346,800. 

LocumTenens.com LLC - $275,000 

The Behavioral Health Division is seeking an amendment to the current Agreement with 

LocumTenens.com.  This firm is utilized to fulfill required psychiatrist staffing for the 

Behavioral Health Division inpatient services on a temporary basis.  Services include sourcing, 

screening, and presenting psychiatrist candidates for the purpose of fulfilling essential coverage 

needs due to vacancies and other absences.  Continued temporary staffing is required, while 

BHD continues to recruit for permanent psychiatrist employees.  This shall be the seventh 

amendment, since the agreement was initially executed on 11/16/2015.  The costs associated 

with locum tenens staffing are offset by current vacancies.  The need to utilize temporary staffing 

decreases, as permanent positions are filled.  We are seeking to amend the existing agreement by 

an additional $275,000 for a new not to exceed total of $3,361,750 and to extend the end date 

through 12/31/2019. 

Netsmart Technologies, Inc. - $8,400 

BHD is requesting $8,400 for Netsmart related to the Electronic Medical Records Optimization 

of MyAvatar.  The amount requested is an increase to the original contract that was executed in 

April of 2017.  The total contract amount is now $3,770,558.  The funds are being requested for 

2018. 

New Resources Consulting dba Clinical Path Consulting, LLC - $2,200 

This was a professional services agreement that provided BHD with a Clinical Informaticist, and 

Principal Trainer position that was critical to the success of the Our Avatar (EMR Optimization) 

Project as well as training and oversight of the BHD clinical documentation tools. Clinical Path 

Consulting provided the consultant to fill the two positions, and the Clinical Informaticist 

consultant has since been hired as a full time BHD Associate, and the Principal Trainer position 

is now vacant.  The funds are being requested to pay an outstanding invoice that covered the time 

period when the Clinical Informaticist position was being transitioned from a Clinical Path 

consultant to a full time BHD associate.  The total contract amount is now $226.975.  The funds 

are being requested for 2018. 



3 

Robert Half International dba Robert Half Technology (Robert Half) - $397,060 

Robert Half is assisting Wraparound Milwaukee with the Synthesis Desktop Application 

Conversion Project.  Wraparound Milwaukee is working to convert their current web model to 

ASP.NET.ASP.NET is a unified web development model that includes the services necessary for 

you to build enterprise-class Web applications with a minimum of coding.  Robert Half also 

provides support and training for the existing Synthesis application.  The funds are being 

requested for 2019.  The total contract amount will be $794,120. 

U.S. Securities Associates/Allied Universal - $468,000 

This Vendor provides public safety services for BHD.  They provide services twenty-four hours 

a day, and seven days a week.  The Vendor is responsible for escorting services, monitoring the 

outside parking lots, and performing environment of care safety checks, etc.  The current 

agreement is being extended until 12/31/2019.  These funds are being requested for 2019.  The 

total contract amount would be $2,800,222. 

Fiscal Summary 

The amount of spending requested in this report is summarized below. 

*Denotes a Vendor whose funding is supported by a grant.

Mary Jo Meyers, Director 

Department of Health and Human Services 

Cc: Maria Perez, Finance Chairperson 

Vendor Name New/Amendment 

2018 

Increase 

Amount 2019 Amount 

Total 

Contract 

Amount 

AMN Healthcare Inc. (dba 

Merritt Hawkins) Amendment $20,000 $254,950 

ARAMARK Amendment $673,397 $673,397 

Evaluation Research 

Services Amendment $173,400 $346,800 

LocumTenens.com LLC Amendment $275,000 $3,361,750 

Netsmart Technologies Amendment $8,400 N/A $3,770,558 

New resources Consulting 

dba Clinical Path 

Consulting, LLC Amendment $2,200 N/A $226,975 

Robert Half International 

dba Robert Half 

Technology Amendment $397,060 $794,120 

U.S. Securities/Allied 

Universal Amendment $468,000 $2,800,222 

Total $10,600 $2,006,857 $12,228,772 



COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE 
Behavioral Health Division Administration 

Inter-Office Communication  

DATE: September 13, 2018 

TO: Tom Lutzow, Chairperson – Milwaukee County Mental Health Board (MCMHB) 

Maria Perez, Chairwoman – Finance Committee, MCMHB  

FROM: Mary Jo Meyers, Director, Department of Health and Human Services 

Approved by Michael Lappen, Administrator, Behavioral Health Division 

SUBJECT:  Report from the Director, Department of Health and Human Services, 

Requesting Authorization to Execute 2019 Purchase-of-Service Contracts 

with a Value in Excess of $100,000 for the Behavioral Health Division for the 

Provision of Adult and Child Mental Health Services and Substance Use 

Disorder Services 

Issue 

Wisconsin Statute 51.41(10) requires approval for any contract related to mental health 

(substance use disorder) with a value of at least $100,000.  No contract or contract adjustment 

shall take effect until approved by the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board.  Per the statute, 

the Director of the Department of Health and Human Services is requesting authorization for 

BHD/CARS/Wraparound/Inpatient Hospital to execute mental health and substance use 

contracts for 2019. 

Background 

Approval of the recommended contract allocations will allow BHD/CARS/Wraparound/Inpatient 

Hospital to provide a broad range of rehabilitation and support services to adults with mental health 

and/or substance use disorders and children with serious emotional disturbances. 

Purchase-of-Service Contracts 

AIDS Resource Center of Wisconsin- $96,213* 

The Vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for CARS consumers. BHD is 

requesting $96,213 for 2019. 

M & S Clinical Services, Inc. - $273,850* 

The Vendor is an Access Point that does screening and assessments for CARS consumers and 

matches the recommended services to the individual’s needs.  BHD will be inviting community 

agencies, organizations and interested parties to submit proposals to be an Access Point Vendor in 

the first quarter of 2019, therefore BHD is only requesting $273,850 for the first six months of 

2019. 

7



2 

M & S Clinical Services, Inc. - $150,000 

The Vendor provides information, AODA prevention, and education to individuals, their families, 

and the general public through the Families Moving Forward coalition. . BHD is requesting 

$150,000 for 2019. 

Impact, Inc. - $254,706* 

The Vendor is an Access Point that does screening and assessments for CARS consumers and 

matches the recommended services to the individual’s needs.  BHD will be inviting community 

agencies, organizations and interested parties to submit proposals to be an Access Point Vendor in 

the first quarter of 2019, therefore BHD is only requesting $254,706 for the first six months of 

2019. 

Impact, Inc. - $315,000 

The Vendor the IMPACT 211 services and is the central access point for people in need. During 

times of personal crisis or community disaster, the free, confidential helpline and online resource 

directory make it easy for residents to get connected to information and assistance. BHD is 

requesting $315,000 for 2019.  

Wisconsin Community Services, Inc. - $157,756* 

The Vendor is an Access Point that does screening and assessments for CARS consumers and 

matches the recommended services to the individual’s needs.  BHD will be inviting community 

agencies, organizations and interested parties to submit proposals to be an Access Point Vendor in 

the first quarter of 2019, therefore BHD is only requesting $157,756 for the first six months of 

2019. 

Wisconsin Community Services, Inc. - $428,913  

The Vendor has been contracted to run the Office of Consumer Affairs program for BHD. BHD is 

requesting $428,913 for 2019. 

Justice Point, Inc. - $22,500* 

The Vendor is an Access Point that does screening and assessments for CARS consumers and 

matches the recommended services to the individual’s needs.  BHD will be inviting community 

agencies, organizations and interested parties to submit proposals to be an Access Point Vendor in 

the first quarter of 2019, therefore BHD is only requesting $22,500 for the first six months of 2019. 

Matt Talbot Recovery Services, Inc. - $2,572,145 

The Vendor provides residential intoxication monitoring service for CARS consumers. BHD is 

requesting $2,572,145 for 2019. 

Matt Talbot Recovery Services, Inc. - $2,196,557 

The Vendor provides residential service for CARS consumers. BHD is requesting $2,196,577 for 

2019. 



3 
 

Community Advocates, Inc. - $500,000* 

The Vendor provides information, prevention education, and training to individuals, their families, 

and the general public to increase awareness and reduce the stigma related to mental illness, 

substance abuse, and co-occurring disorders. BHD is requesting $500,000 for 2019. 

 

Community Advocates, Inc. - $266,600* 

The Vendor provides prevention services for CARS consumers. BHD is requesting $266,600 for 

2019. 

 

Mental Health America of WI - $40,000 

The Vendor provides suicide prevention information and training for individuals, their families, 

and the general public to increase awareness and help reduce the number of suicides. BHD is 

requesting $40,000 for 2019. 

 

Mental Health America of WI - $44,000 

The Vendor provides information and training for individuals, their families, and the general public 

and provides linkages and referrals to other community services. BHD is requesting $44,000 for 

2019. 

 

St. Charles Youth & Family Services, Inc. - $350,000* 

The Vendor provides training coordination for CARS. BHD is requesting $350,000 for 2019. 

 

Meta House, Inc. - $50,000* 

The Vendor provides AODA prevention services for CARS consumers. BHD is requesting 

$50,000 for 2019. 

 

Outreach Community Health Centers, Inc. - $2,196,557 

The Vendor provides outpatient treatment service for CARS consumers. BHD is requesting 

$2,196,557 for 2019. 

 

National Alliance for Mentally Ill - $30,000 

The Vendor provides consumer advocacy services for CARS consumers. BHD is requesting 

$30,000 for 2019. 

 

Milwaukee Center for Independence, Inc. - $331,984  

The Vendor provides benefit advocacy and assistance for BHD consumers through the Winged 

Victory program. BHD is requesting $331,984 for 2019. 

 

Milwaukee Center for Independence, Inc. - $1,160,000  

The Vendor provides a Crisis Resource Center (North) that serves adults with mental health needs 

who are in need of crisis intervention and/or short-term crisis stabilization versus hospitalization. 

BHD is requesting $740,000 for 2019. Additionally, $420,000 in Medicaid passthrough payments 

is also being requested to support CRC services. 

 

 

 



4 

Milwaukee Center for Independence, Inc. - $1,160,000 

The Vendor provides a Crisis Resource Center (South) that serves adults with mental health needs 

who are in need of crisis intervention and/or short-term crisis stabilization versus hospitalization. 

BHD is requesting $740,000 for 2019. Additionally, $420,000 in Medicaid passthrough payments 

is also being requested to support CRC services. 

United Community Center - $45,000 

The Vendor in partnership with the Sixteenth Street Community Health Center will strengthen 

their bilingual and bicultural service delivery for both behavioral health and physical health for 

BHD consumers. BHD is requesting $45,000 for 2019. 

Warmline, Inc. - $50,000 

The Vendor provides non-crisis phone line coverage to individuals living with mental illness who 

need supportive talk and linkages to community resources. BHD is requesting $50,000 for 2019. 

Our Space, Inc. - $250,962 

The Vendor provides a psychosocial drop-in center that provides a casual environment for 

education, recreation, socialization, pre-vocational activities, and occupational therapy 

opportunities for individuals with severe and persistent mental illness and/or co-occurring 

disorders. BHD is requesting $250,962 for 2019. 

Our Space, Inc. - $400,000   

The Vendor is creating a peer run respite house for individuals who are experiencing an increase 

in symptoms, or life needs, and who are in need of support and services to aid in their recovery 

and thereby avert crises and prevent hospitalization. BHD is requesting $400,000 for 2019. 

Grand Avenue Club, Inc. - $200,000 

The Vendor provides psycho-social club which is a model of rehabilitation for individuals living 

with mental illness and/or co-occurring disorders. The clubhouse operates with participants as 

members, who engage in partnership with staff in the running of the clubhouse and includes 

involvement in the planning processes and all other operations of the club. BHD is requesting 

$200,000 for 2019. 

Vital Voices for Mental Health - $75,000 

The Vendor does consumer satisfaction surveys for CARS consumers. BHD is requesting $45,000 

for 2019. 

La Causa, Inc. - $609,714 

The Vendor provides post hospitalization support by Peer Specialists to increase independence 

and success following discharge. BHD is requesting to enter into a purchase of service contract for 

$329,714 for 2019. This is the same amount that was requested for these services in 2018. 

Additionally, $280,000 in Medicaid passthrough payments is also being requested to support these 

services. 



5 
 

La Causa, Inc. - $200,000 

The Vendor provides crisis mobile services. Crisis mobile pairs crisis workers with Police Officers 

to more effectively handle mental health crisis in the community and decrease involuntary 

admissions. BHD is requesting $200,000 for 2019. 

 

Bell Therapy, Inc. - $298,000 

The Vendor provides crisis stabilization home services. BHD is requesting $298,000 for 2019. 

 

Bell Therapy, Inc. - $279,135 

The Vendor provides crisis stabilization home services. BHD is requesting $279,135 for 2019. 

 

AJA Enterprises LLC dba AJA Counseling Center - $1,770,372 

The Vendor provides Care Coordination, REACH, and screening/assessment services for the 

Wraparound Milwaukee Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting 

$1,770,372 for 2019. 

 

Alternatives in Psychological Consultation, S.C. - $2,500,491 

The Vendor provides Care Coordination, REACH, and screening/assessment services for the 

Wraparound Milwaukee Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting 

$2,500,491 for 2019. 

 

SEA Group - $300,000 

The Vendor provides Educational Advocacy services for the Wraparound Milwaukee Program 

serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting $300,000 for 2019. 

 

Family Strong, LLC - $225,000* 

The Vendor provides family engagement and advocacy services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting $225,000 for 2019. 

 

Kids Forward - $250,000 

The Vendor provides support services such as program evaluation, training, consultation for the 

Wraparound Milwaukee Program.  BHD is requesting $250,000 for 2019.  

 

La Causa, Inc. - $4,736,424 

The Vendor provides Care Coordination, REACH, and screening/assessment services for the 

Wraparound Milwaukee Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting 

$4,736,424 for 2019. 

 

Lad Lake - $283,720 

The Vendor provides the OYEAH program for the Wraparound Milwaukee Program serving 

children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting $283,720 for 2019. 

 

Pathfinders Milwaukee, Inc. - $141,860 

The Vendor provides the OYEAH program for the Wraparound Milwaukee Program serving 

children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting $141,860 for 2019. 

 



6 
 

SaintA, Inc. - $1,917,779 

The Vendor provides Care Coordination, REACH, and screening/assessment services for the 

Wraparound Milwaukee Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting 

$1,917,779 for 2019. 

 

St. Charles Youth & Family Services, Inc. - $4,567,143 

The Vendor provides Care Coordination, REACH, OYEAH, screening/assessment, mobile crisis, 

Peer Specialists, and case management services for the Wraparound Milwaukee Program serving 

children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting $4,567,143 for 2019. 

 

Willowglen Community Care - $1,920,516 

The Vendor provides Care Coordination, REACH, and screening/assessment services for the 

Wraparound Milwaukee Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting 

$1,920,516 for 2019. 

 

Wisconsin Community Services, Inc. - $463,140 

The Vendor provides Care Coordination, and OYEAH services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting $463,140 for 2019. 

 

Fiscal Summary 

 

The amount of spending requested in this report is summarized below.  

 

Vendor Name New/Amendment 
 

2019 Amount 

Total Contract 

Amount 

AIDS Resource 

Center of 

Wisconsin* New $96,213 $96,213 

M&S Clinical 

Services, Inc.* New $273,850 $273,850 

M&S Clinical 

Services, Inc. New $150,000 $150,000 

Impact, Inc. New $254,706 $254,706 

Impact, Inc. New $315,000 $315,000 

Wisconsin 

Community 

Services, Inc.* New $157,756 $157,756 

Wisconsin 

Community 

Services, Inc. New $428,913 $428,913 

Justice Point, Inc.* New $22,500 $22,500 

Matt Talbot 

Recovery Services, 

Inc. New $2,572,145 $2,572,145 



7 
 

Vendor Name New/Amendment 
 

2019 Amount 

Total Contract 

Amount 

Matt Talbot 

Recovery Services, 

Inc. New $2,196,557 $2,196,557 

Community 

Advocates, Inc.* New $500,000 $500,000 

Community 

Advocates, Inc.* New $266,600 $266,600 

Mental Health 

America of WI New $40,000 $40,000 

Mental Health 

America of WI New $44,000 $44,000 

St. Charles Youth & 

Family Services, 

Inc.* New $350,000 $350,000 

Meta House, Inc.* New $50,000 $50,000 

Outreach 

Community Health 

Centers, Inc. New $2,196,557 $2,196,557 

National Alliance for 

Mentally Ill New $30,000 $30,000 

Milwaukee Center 

for Independence, 

Inc. New $331,984 $331,984 

Milwaukee Center 

for Independence, 

Inc. New $1,160,000 $1,160,000 

Milwaukee Center 

for Independence, 

Inc. New $1,160,000 $1,160,000 

United Community 

Center New $45,000 $45,000 

Warmline, Inc. New $50,000 $50,000 

Our Space, Inc. New $250,962 $250,962 

Our Space, Inc. New $400,000 $400,000 

Grand Ave, Club, 

Inc. New $200,000 $200,000 

Vital Voices for 

Mental Health New $75,000 $75,000 

La Causa, Inc. New $609,714 $609,714 

La Causa, Inc. New $200,000 $200,000 

Bell Therapy, Inc. New $298,000 $298,000 

Bell Therapy, Inc. New $279,135 $279,135 



8 

Vendor Name New/Amendment 
2019 Amount 

Total Contract 

Amount 

AJA Enterprises dba 

AJA Counseling 

Center New $1,770,372 $1,770,372 

Alternatives in 

Psychological 

Consultation, S.C. New $2,500,491 $2,500,491 

SEA Group New $300,000 $300,000 

Family Strong, 

LLC* New $225,000 $225,000 

Kids Forward New $250,000 $250,000 

La Causa, Inc. New $4,736,424 $4,736,424 

Lad Lake New $283,720 $283,720 

Pathfinders 

Milwaukee, Inc. New $141,860 $141,860 

SaintA, Inc. New $1,917,779 $1,917,779 

St. Charles Youth & 

Family Services, Inc. New $4,576,143 $4,576,143 

Willowglen 

Community Care New $1,920,516 $1,920,516 

Wisconsin 

Community 

Services, Inc. New $463,140 $463,140 

Total $34,090,037 $34,090,037 

*Denotes a Vendor whose funding is supported by a grant.

Mary Jo Meyers, Director 

Department of Health and Human Services 

Cc: Maria Perez, Finance Chairperson 



COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE 
Behavioral Health Division Administration 

Inter-Office Communication  

DATE: October 16, 2018 

TO: Thomas Lutzow, Chairman – Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

FROM: Mary Jo Meyers, Director, Department of Health and Human Services 

Approved by Michael Lappen, Administrator, Behavioral Health Division 

SUBJECT:  Report from the Director, Department of Health and Human Services, 

Requesting Authorization to Execute an Amendment to a 2018 Purchase-of-

Service Contract and 2019 Purchase of Service Contracts with a Value in 

Excess of $100,000 for the Behavioral Health Division for the Provision of 

Adult and Child Mental Health Services and Substance Use Disorder 

Services 

Issue 

Wisconsin Statute 51.41(10) requires approval for any contract related to mental health 

(substance use disorder) with a value of at least $100,000.  No contract or contract adjustment 

shall take effect until approved by the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board.  Per the statute, 

the Director of the Department of Health and Human Services is requesting authorization for 

BHD/CARS/Wraparound/Inpatient Hospital to execute mental health and substance use 

contracts for 2018 and 2019. 

Background 

Approval of the recommended contract allocations will allow BHD/CARS/Wraparound/Inpatient 

Hospital to provide a broad range of rehabilitation and support services to adults with mental 

health and/or substance use disorders and children with serious emotional disturbances. 

Purchase-of-Service Contracts 

Community Medical Services - $1,000,000* 

The Substance Abuse and Mental Health Administration (SAMHSA), Center for Substance 

Abuse Treatment (CSAT) and Center for Substance Abuse Prevention (CSAP), has granted The 

Community Access to Recovery Services (CARS), Behavioral Health Division (BHD) an 

additional $1,000,000 for 2018/2019 as part of the Targeted Response to the Opioid Crisis. The 

goal of the grant is to increase access to treatment, reduce the unmet treatment need, and reduce 

the number of opioid related deaths. CARS will use the additional funding to bring Community 

Medical Services, a new Vendor into the Milwaukee County area to help realize the goals of the 

grant. The funds will be used for the startup costs. Community Medical Services provides 

ASAM Level 1 Outpatient Opioid Maintenance Treatment Services for consumers with a 

8



2 

diagnosis use disorder (OUD) determined by DSM and ASM criteria. BHD is requesting 

$500,000 for 2018 and $500,000 for 2019. BHD is currently awaiting the State award letter. 

La Causa, Inc. - $100,000 

The Vendor provides crisis mobile services. Crisis mobile pairs crisis workers with Police Officers 

to more effectively handle mental health crisis in the community and decrease involuntary 

admissions. BHD is requesting to increase by $50,000 for 2018 & 2019 for a total increase of 

$100,000. This amendment will increase the total contract amounts for 2018 & 2019 to $250,000. 

This increase will be funded through anticipated underspend in La Causa’s Community Linkages 

and Stabilization Program (CLASP). 

Matt Talbot Recovery Services, Inc. - $2,572,145 

The Vendor provides residential intoxication services in a safe, supportive, and therapeutic 

environment. The funds are being requested for 2019 and the total contract amount will be 

$2,572,145. 

Fiscal Summary 

The amount of spending requested in this report is summarized below. 

Vendor Name New/Amendment 
2018 Amount 2019 Amount 

Total Contract 

Amount 

Community 

Medical Services* 
New $500,000 $500,000 $1,000,000 

La Causa, Inc. Amendment $250,000 $250,000 $500,000 

Matt Talbot, 

Recovery Services, 

Inc. 

New $2,572,145 $2,572,145 $2,572,145 

Total $3,322,145 $3,322,145 $4,072,145 

*Denotes a Vendor whose funding is supported by a grant.

Mary Jo Meyers, Director 

Department of Health and Human Services 

Cc: Maria Perez, Finance Chairperson 



COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE 

Behavioral Health Division Administration 

Inter-Office Communication  

DATE: September 13, 2018 

TO: Tom Lutzow, Chairperson – Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

Maria Perez, Chairwoman – Finance Committee 

FROM: Mary Jo Meyers, Director, Department of Health and Human Services 

Approved by Michael Lappen, Administrator, Behavioral Health Division 

SUBJECT:  Report from the Director, Department of Health and Human Services, 

Requesting Authorization to Execute 2018 Fee-for-Service Agreement 

Amendments with a Value in Excess of $100,000 for the Behavioral Health 

Division for the Provision of Adult and Child Mental Health Services and 

Substance Use Disorder Services 

Issue 

Wisconsin Statute 51.41(10) requires approval for any contract related to mental health 

(substance use disorder) with a value of at least $100,000.  No contract or contract adjustment 

shall take effect until approved by the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board.  Per the statute, 

the Director of the Department of Health and Human Services is requesting authorization for 

BHD/CARS/Wraparound/Inpatient Hospital to execute mental health and substance use contract 

amendments for 2018. 

Background 

Approval of the recommended contract allocation projections will allow 

BHD/CARS/Wraparound/Inpatient Hospital to provide a broad range of rehabilitation and 

support services to adults with mental health and/or substance use disorders and children with 

serious emotional disturbances. 

Fee-for-Service Agreements 

Allendale Association, Inc. - $400,000 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $400,000 for 

2018. The total contract amount will be $480,000.  

Dominion Behavioral Health Services, LLC - $20,000 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $20,000 for 

2018. The total contract amount will be $155,688.  

9



2 

Libertas Community Center - $115,000 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $30,000 for 

2018. The total contract amount will be $115,000.  

Fiscal Summary 

The amount of spending requested in this report is summarized below. 

Vendor Name New/Amendment 

2018 

Increase 

Total 

Contract 

Amount 

Allendale Association, Inc. Amendment $400,000 $480,000 

Dominion Behavioral Health 

Services, LLC Amendment $20,000 $155,688 

Libertas Treatment Center Amendment $30,000 $115,000 

Total $450,000 $750,688 

*Denotes a Vendors whose funding is supported by a grant.

Mary Jo Meyers, Director 

Department of Health and Human Services 

Cc: Maria Perez, Finance Chairperson 



COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE 

Behavioral Health Division Administration 

Inter-Office Communication  

DATE: October 17, 2018 

TO: Thomas Lutzow, Chairperson – Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

FROM: Mary Jo Meyers, Director, Department of Health and Human Services 

Approved by Michael Lappen, Administrator, Behavioral Health Division 

SUBJECT:  Report from the Director, Department of Health and Human Services, 

Requesting Authorization to Execute 2018 and 2019 Fee-for-Service 

Agreements with a Value in Excess of $100,000 for the Behavioral Health 

Division for the Provision of Adult and Child Mental Health Services and 

Substance Use Disorder Services 

Issue 

Wisconsin Statute 51.41(10) requires approval for any contract related to mental health 

(substance use disorder) with a value of at least $100,000.  No contract or contract adjustment 

shall take effect until approved by the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board.  Per the statute, 

the Director of the Department of Health and Human Services is requesting authorization for 

BHD/CARS/Wraparound/Inpatient Hospital to execute mental health and substance use 

contracts for 2018, and 2019. 

Background 

Approval of the recommended contract allocation projections will allow 

BHD/CARS/Wraparound/Inpatient Hospital to provide a broad range of rehabilitation and 

support services to adults with mental health and/or substance use disorders and children with 

serious emotional disturbances. 

Fee-for-Service Agreements 

Community Medical Services - $99,000* 

Community Medical Services provides ASAM Level 1 Outpatient Opioid Maintenance Treatment 

Services for consumers with a diagnosis use disorder (OUD) determined by DSM and ASM 

criteria. The provider will provide Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT) for indigent consumers 

in Milwaukee County. BHD is requesting $99,000 For 2019. 

*The following Fee for Service Agreements are for the Community Support Program (CSP):

These contracts are being awarded as the result of the successful proposals that the Providers 

submitted in response to the Request for Proposal that was issued by BHD on August 28, 2018. 

CSP is for persons with severe and persistent mental illness. CSP is defined as a coordinated care 

10



2 

and treatment program which provides a range of treatment, rehabilitation, and support services 

through an identified treatment program. 

MCFI dba Whole Health Medical - $2,590,000 

Whole Health Medical is being awarded a Fee for Service contract to provide Community 

Support Program (CSP) as a result of a Request for Proposal that was issued. BHD is requesting 

to enter into a contract not to exceed $2,590,000 for CSP services in 2019. 

Milwaukee Mental Health Associates, Inc. - $3,160,000 

The Provider is being awarded a Fee for Service contract to provide Community Support Program 

(CSP) as a result of a Request for Proposal that was issued. BHD is requesting to enter into a 

contract not to exceed $3,160,000 for CSP services in 2019. 

Outreach Community Health Centers - $1,020,000 

The Provider is being awarded a Fee for Service contract to provide Community Support Program 

(CSP) as a result of a Request for Proposal that was issued. BHD is requesting to enter into a 

contract not to exceed $1,020,000 for CSP services in 2019. 

Phoenix Care Systems, Inc. - $1,870,000 

The Provider is being awarded a Fee for Service contract to provide Community Support Program 

(CSP) as a result of a Request for Proposal that was issued. BHD is requesting to enter into a 

contract not to exceed $1,870,000 for CSP services in 2019. 

Project Access - $2,450,000 

The Provider is being awarded a Fee for Service contract to provide Community Support Program 

(CSP) as a result of a Request for Proposal that was issued. BHD is requesting to enter into a 

contract not to exceed $2,450,000 for CSP services in 2019. 

Wisconsin Community Services - $2,930,000 

The Provider is being awarded a Fee for Service contract to provide Community Support Program 

(CSP) as a result of a Request for Proposal that was issued. BHD is requesting to enter into a 

contract not to exceed $2,930,000 for CSP services in 2019. 

*The following Fee for Service Agreements are for Comprehensive Community Services

(CCS) Medicaid increases* 

Bracy Psychological Services & Stress Management - $20,000 

The Vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $20,000 for 

2018. The total contract amount will be $406,000 for 2018/2019.  

Honey Creek Counseling - $180,661.89 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for consumers in the CARS 

program. BHD is requesting an additional $90,661.89 for 2018 and $90,000 for 2019. The total 

contract amount will be $230,000 for 2018/2019.  



3 
 

 

Libertas - $30,000 

The Vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $23,000 for 

2018. The total contract amount will be $115,000 for 2018.  

 

MCFI Home Care - $195,000 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for consumers in the CARS 

program. BHD is requesting an additional $195,000 for 2018. The total contract amount will be 

$450,000 for 2018/2019.  

 

Meta House - $38,000 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for consumers in the CARS 

program. BHD is requesting an additional $38,000 for 2018. The total contract amount will be 

$402,000 for 2018/2019.  

 

Mental Health America of Wisconsin Inc. - $110,000 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for consumers in the CARS 

program. BHD is requesting an additional $110,000 for 2018 and $150,00 for 2019. The total 

contract amount will be $280,000 for 2018/2019.  

 

Milwaukee Mental Health Associates- $78,000 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for consumers in the CARS 

program. BHD is requesting an additional $78,000 for 2018. The total contract amount will be 

$444,000 for 2018/2019.  

 

Our Space, Inc. - $154,606.10 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for consumers in the CARS 

program. BHD is requesting an additional $154,606.10 for 2018. The total contract amount will 

be $185,393.90 for 2018/2019.  

 

Project Access, Inc. - $8,000 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for consumers in the CARS 

program. BHD is requesting an additional $8,000 for 2018. The total contract amount will be 

$872,000 for 2018/2019.  

 

Professional Services Group, Inc. - $17,000 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for consumers in the CARS 

program. BHD is requesting an additional $17,000 for 2018. The total contract amount will be 

$323,000 for 2018/2019.  

 

Revive Youth & Family Services, LLC - $332,914 

The Vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting $166,457 for 2019. The 

total contract amount will be $332,914 for 2018/2019.  

 



4 
 

Sebastian Family Psychology Practice - $25,000 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for consumers in the CARS 

program. BHD is requesting an additional $25,000 for 2018. The total contract amount will be 

$675,000.  

 

Summit Wellness, Inc. - $267,748 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for consumers in the CARS 

program. BHD is requesting an additional $267,748 for 2018. The total contract amount will be 

$1,072,252.  

 

Tomorrow’s Future, LLC - $221,462 

The Vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families, under a Fee for Service Agreement. BHD is 

requesting an additional $41,462 for 2018 and $180,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will 

be $360,000 for 2018/2019.  

 

Tomorrow’s Future, LLC - $100,000 

The Vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families, under an Out of Network Agreement. BHD is 

requesting an additional $100,000 for 2018. The total contract amount will be $180,000 for 2018.  

 

 

Fiscal Summary 

 

The amount of spending requested in this report is summarized below.  
 

Vendor Name New/Amendment 

 

 

 

2018 Contract 

Amount 2018 Increase 

 

 

 

2019 

Amount 

Total 

Contract 

Amount 

(2018/2019) 
Bracy 

Psychological 

Services & Stress 

Management Amendment 

 

 

 

$153,447 $20,000 

 

$232,553 $406,000 

MCFI dba Whole 

Health Medical New N/A N/A $2,590,000 $2,590,000 

Milwaukee Mental 

Health Associates, 

Inc. New N/A N/A $3,160,000 $3,160,000 

Outreach 

Community Health 

Center New N/A N/A $1,020,000 $1,020,000 

Phoenix Care 

Systems, Inc. New N/A N/A $1,870,000 $1,870,000 



5 
 

Vendor Name New/Amendment 

 

 

 

2018 Contract 

Amount 2018 Increase 

 

 

 

2019 

Amount 

Total 

Contract 

Amount 

(2018/2019) 

Project Access, Inc. New N/A N/A $2,450,000 $2,450,000 

Wisconsin 

Community 

Services New N/A N/A $2,930,000 $2,930,000 

Community 

Medical Services New N/A N/A $99,000 $99,000 

Honey Creek 

Counseling Amendment $49,338.11 $90,661.89 $90,000 $230,000 

Libertas Amendment $85,000 $30,000 N/A $115,000 

MCFI Home Care, 

LLC Amendment $125,000 $195,000 $130,000 $450,000 

Meta House, Inc. Amendment $182,000 $38,000 $182,000 $402,000 

Mental Health 

America of 

Wisconsin, Inc. Amendment $20,000 $110,000 $150,000 $280,000 

Milwaukee Mental 

Health Associates, 

Inc. Amendment $222,000 $78,000 $222,000 $444,000 

Our Space, Inc. Amendment $15,393.90 $154,606.10 $15,393.90 $185,393.90 

Project Access, Inc. Amendment $432,000 $8,000 $432,000 $872,000 

Professional 

Services Group, 

Inc. Amendment $153,000 $17,000 $153,000 $323,000 

Revive Youth & 

Family Services, 

LLC Amendment $166,457 N/A $166,457 $332,914 

Sebastian Family 

Psychology Amendment $325,000 $25,000 $325,000 $675,000 

Summit wellness, 

Inc. Amendment $402,252 $267,748 $402,252 $1,072,252 

Tomorrow’s 

Future, LLC 

(FFSA) Amendment $138,538 $41,462 $180,000 $360,000 

Tomorrow’s 

Future, LLC 

(OONA) Amendment $80,000 $100,000 N/A $180,000 



6 

Vendor Name New/Amendment 

2018 Contract 

Amount 2018 Increase 

2019 

Amount 

Total 

Contract 

Amount 

(2018/2019) 

Total $2,549,426 $1,175,478 $16,799,655.90 $20,446,559.90 

*Denotes a Vendors whose funding is supported by a grant.

Mary Jo Meyers, Director 

Department of Health and Human Services 

Cc: Maria Perez, Finance Chairperson 



Chairperson:  Maria Perez 
Senior Executive Assistant:  Jodi Mapp, 257-5202 

MILWAUKEE COUNTY MENTAL HEALTH BOARD 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

Thursday, September 13, 2018 - 1:30 P.M. 
Milwaukee County Mental Health Complex 

9455 West Watertown Plank Road 
Conference Room 1045 

MINUTES 

PRESENT: Maria Perez, Jon Lehrmann, Michael Davis, and Kathleen Eilers 
ABSENT: Duncan Shrout 

SCHEDULED ITEMS: 

1. Welcome. 

Chairwoman Perez welcomed everyone to the September 13, 2018, Mental Health Board 
Finance Committee meeting. 

2. Reserve Analysis Overview. 

An update was provided on the overall state of Behavioral Health Division Reserves.  Year-
End 2017 Reserve balances include $21,300 million in Operating, $4,700 million in Capital, 
and $8,300 million in Wraparound.  Wraparound Reserves can only be used to serve 
children.  With Reserve numbers in mind, a review was done of the current 
projects/initiatives that have been committed to, future commitments, and risk exposure.  
All of which is funded through Reserves. 

3. Reserve Fund Policy. 

A provision of Act 203 requires at year end, any unexpended or unencumbered mental 
health budget funds be held by the Milwaukee County Treasurer in a mental health reserve 
fund.  Once the fund reaches a $10 million balance, any surplus amounts may be used for 
“any mental health function, program, or service in Milwaukee County.”  It also shifted 
authority for the building reserve fund to the Mental Health Board (MHB). 

The policy outlines the procedure for accessing the funds.  The Behavioral Health Division 
(BHD) Administrator will submit a memorandum to the MHB’s Finance Committee 
requesting the release of funds.  In the memo, BHD will outline the project(s) being funded, 

11



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

Finance Committee 

September 13, 2018  2 of 4 

 

the amount being requested, justification as to why the project(s) are appropriate for 
reserve funds, and the anticipated impact on reserve funds. 
 
The Finance Committee will review the request and make a recommendation to the Board.  
If approved by the Board, BHD will submit a fund transfer to the Department of 
Administrative Services requesting an amendment to the current year budget. 
 
Questions and comments ensued. 
 
The Finance Committee unanimously agreed to recommend approval of the Reserve Fund 
Policy to the Board. 
 

4.  Mental Health Board Finance Committee Purchase-of-Service Contracts 
Recommendation. 
 

 2019 Contracts 
 
Purchase-of-Service Contracts for the Provision of Adult and Child Mental Health Services 
and Substance Use Disorder Services were reviewed.  An overview was provided detailing 
the various program contracts.  A recommendation to approve would be for 2019 
Contracts. 
 
Questions and comments ensued. 
 
Finance Committee Member Eilers abstained from recommending the Grand Avenue Club 
and the Milwaukee Center for Independence contracts for approval. 
 
Remaining Committee Members unanimously agreed to recommend approval of the Grand 
Avenue Club and the Milwaukee Center for Independence contracts to the Board. 
 
Finance Committee Chairwoman Maria Perez abstained from recommending the United 
Community Center contract for approval. 
 
Remaining Committee Members unanimously agreed to recommend approval of the 
United Community Center contract to the Board. 
 
The Finance Committee, as a whole, unanimously agreed to recommend approval of the 
balance of 2019 Purchase-of-Service Contracts delineated in the corresponding report to 
the Board. 
 

  



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

Finance Committee 

September 13, 2018  3 of 4 

 

5.  Mental Health Board Finance Committee Fee-for-Service Agreements 
Recommendation. 
 
Fee-for-Service Agreements for the Provision of Adult and Child Mental Health Services 
and Substance Use Disorder Services were reviewed.  An overview was provided detailing 
the various program agreements, which provide a broad range of rehabilitation and support 
services to adults with mental health and/or substance use disorders and children with 
serious emotional disturbances. 
 
The Finance Committee unanimously agreed to recommend approval of Amendments to 
the 2018 Fee-for-Service Agreements delineated in the corresponding report to the Board. 
 

6.  2018 Financial Reporting Package. 
 
The anticipated deficit for 2018 is $400,000.  Data projections included patient revenue 
generated from adult inpatient and Child/Adolescent Inpatient Services (CAIS).  The 
Emergency Room (ER)/Observation Unit (OBS) is under budget.  A surplus is expected for 
management, operations, and fiscal due to vacant positions.  Both hospital and community 
services revenue and expenses were identified as either over or under budget. 
 
Questions and comments ensued. 
 

7.  Veteran Health Support Program. 
 
At the June 28, 2018, Finance Committee Budget meeting, Board Member Curry put forth 
an amendment related to legal services for veterans who were less than honorably 
discharged.  The status prohibits enrollment in the Department of Veterans Affairs (VA) 
healthcare system.  Behavioral Health Division (BHD) staff reached out to Milwaukee 
County Veteran Services Director Jim Duff, who provided a written opinion on their position 
in this matter. 
 
According to the opinion, Milwaukee County Veteran Services already provides this 
assistance, and Milwaukee County funding a similar legal option would be redundant.  
Veteran Services are able to keep up with the current demand for these services and have 
a successful track record getting the status overturned. 
 
A preliminary analysis was done related to the number of veterans served by BHD in the 
last eighteen months.  A better understanding is needed as to why (less than honorable 
discharge issue or needs not being met) these individuals are not accessing VA services.  
Included in the analysis will be to assess the comparable services the VA offers. 
 
Questions and comments ensued. 
 



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

Finance Committee 

September 13, 2018 4 of 4 

The Finance Committee indicated it would not recommend funding the program at this 
time.  The Committee did request to be provided with data by Board Member Curry 
reflecting the number of veterans who need and are not receiving these particular legal 
services with a report back to the Committee in a year. 

BHD staff will follow-up with Board Member Curry. 

8. Adjournment. 

Chairwoman Perez ordered the meeting adjourned. 

This meeting was recorded.  The official copy of these minutes and subject reports, along with 
the audio recording of this meeting, is available on the Milwaukee County Behavioral Health 
Division/Mental Health Board web page. 

Length of meeting:  1:34 p.m. to 3:03 p.m. 

Adjourned, 

Jodi Mapp 
Senior Executive Assistant 
Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

The next regular meeting of the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 
Finance Committee is Thursday, October 25, 2018, at 7:00 a.m. 

at the Zoofari Conference Center 

Visit the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board Web Page at: 

https://county.milwaukee.gov/EN/DHHS/About/Governance#MCMHBrecords 

https://county.milwaukee.gov/EN/DHHS/About/Governance#MCMHBrecords


8/29/2018

Year End 2017 Reserve Balances

Operating Reserve 21,300$  

Capital Reserve 4,700$   

Wraparound Reserve 8,300$   
34,300$  

Usage of Reserves
 Funds 

Committed Minimum Maximum

Committed1

Peer Respite Annual Expense   (thru 2020) 200$    200$    600$    

CART Annual Expense  (thru 2020) 100$    100$    300$    

Board Analyst Annual Expense 50$    50$    150$    

Future Committments
Retention / Severance Payments 2,400$    4,200$    

CSP High Fidelity Grant (5yr) 600$    600$    
(5yr $1m/yr. - $250k/yr1, $350k/yr2)

Veterans 100$    100$    

Oxford House 200$    200$    

Risk Exposure
Inpatient/ER Operating Deficit -$     4,000$    

CAIS -  CON Medicaid Recoupment 500$    1,000$    

Building

Life Safety ?

Major Repairs ?

Downsizing Exposure ?

Accounts Receivable - uncollectable -$     2,000$    

Total Committed to Initiatives 350$    

Range of funds to be withdrawn from reserves: 4,150$    13,150$   

1Committed funds for specific initiatives will not be withdrawn from reserves if there is a surplus in the year.

Projected Usage

Milwaukee County Behavioral Health Division

Reserve Analysis ($000's)

C:\Users\JodiMapp\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\FGRHJTDX\BHD 

Reserve YE 2017.xlsx

Finance Committee Item 2



Finance Committee Item 6



COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE 
Behavioral Health Division Administration 

Inter-Office Communication  

DATE: September 13, 2018 

TO: Tom Lutzow, Chairperson – Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

FROM: Mary Jo Meyers, Director, Department of Health and Human Services 
Approved by Michael Lappen, Administrator, Behavioral Health Division 

SUBJECT: Report from the Director, Department of Health and Human Services, Providing 
Additional Information on 2019 Budget Amendment #1 Titled Veteran Health 
Support Program 

Background 

At the June 28, 2018, Finance Committee meeting, the Committee laid over 2019 Budget 
Amendment #1 titled Veteran Health Support Program.  This Amendment would use $150,000 
Behavioral Health Division (BHD) Reserve funds annually to fund a legal team to support 
Milwaukee County veterans in their efforts to overturn their denied benefits status. 

In July, BHD Administration reached out to the Milwaukee County Veterans Service Office 
(MCVSO) to get information on what MCVSO is already doing to assist veterans in overturning 
denied benefits status.  After reviewing the Budget Amendment, the MCVSO Director, Jim Duff, 
offered to submit a memorandum to the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board (See 
Attachment A) on the ability of MCVSO to meet this objective with existing resources. 

Mary Jo Meyers, Director 
Department of Health and Human Services 

Cc: Maria Perez, Finance Chairperson 

Finance Committee Item 7



BUDGET RECOMMENDATION 
2019 REQUESTED BUDGET 
MILWAUKEE COUNTY BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIVISION 

Title: 

MCMHB Sponsor: 

Narrative Description:  
After recent discussions with various community stakeholders, it has become apparent that a gap exists in community service which 
results in an unnecessary burden upon Milwaukee’s county-funded behavioral health services. Other communities throughout the 
nation, facing similar financial hurdles, have invested resources into addressing this problem at its source rather than at the point of 
crisis, which results in improvements to the health of the targeted community while expanding available resources for the general 
public. The gap which this proposal seeks to fill is the lack of accessible legal services for trauma-affected veterans who have earned VA 
healthcare, but are unnecessarily utilizing county-funded behavioral health services. 

Milwaukee’s current legal and advocacy services lack the capacity to provide specialized administrative knowledge on a pro bono basis to 
veterans who suffered service-connected trauma and have been denied VA eligibility. Private attorneys accept cases on retainer or 
collecting fees from the client’s financial award, and county veteran resources provide advice on completing paperwork and filing deadlines. 
What Milwaukee lacks is a resource for veterans with PTSD or other trauma to have an attorney represent them for free to challenge their 
denial of benefits, one who has been trained in current administrative guidance and the evolving treatment of PTSD and trauma by the 
military and VA. Investing in this advocacy as a priority to address public health is the forward-thinking solution which will, within months, 
reduce unnecessarily utilization of county resources. 

The MCMHB can receive a great return on investing in such a program. By funding a local non-profit with $150,000 annually, the 
MCMHB could invite proposals from organizations to describe how they would implement such a project, and how county health 
services could better identify veterans currently utilizing BHD services whose costs of care should be borne by the federal 
government, not by Milwaukee County. Proposals would require the director of such a project to be a licensed attorney and 
accredited by the VA, and should describe how the remaining funds would be used to train a network of volunteer attorneys and 
implement positive change to BHD services. This Veteran Peer should be WI State Certified Peer, as well as Paralegal training.  
Assuming a limited commitment of 3 years of funding, proposals would also need to identify how the project would sustain itself 
once financial investments from MCMHB expire. 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Anticipated 2019 Financial Impact of Recommendation: 
Description Revenue Expense Tax Levy 
 Veteran Health Support Program - $150,000 - 
 Contribution from Reserves $150,000 - - 
Total $150,000 $150,000 $0 

This initiative requires a total commitment of $450,000 from the BHD general reserve. This is a three year commitment, not to exceed 
$150,000 annually. The $450,000 commitment also does not include the administrative costs of setting up or administering an RFP.    

The 2019 budgeted contribution from reserves would increase from $351,697 to $501,697 in 2019 and 2020. The 2021 budgeted contribution 
from reserves would decrease to $150,000, since other initiatives currently funded from the reserve would have been completed at that time. 

Contract expenditures would increase by $150,000 in 2019, and then decrease by $150,000 in 2022. 

Please send completed recommendation forms to: 
Maria Perez, PhD (Maria.Perez@milwaukeecountywi.gov) & 
Lisa Wozny (Lisa.Wozny@milwaukeecountywi.gov) 

Veteran Health Support Program 

Robert Curry 

AMENDMENT #1



















Chairperson:  Mary Neubauer
Executive Assistant:  Kiara Abram, 257-7212

MILWAUKEE COUNTY MENTAL HEALTH BOARD
QUALITY COMMITTEE

September 17, 2018 - 10:00 A.M.
Milwaukee County Mental Health Complex

Conference Room 1045

MINUTES
SCHEDULED ITEMS:

1. Welcome.  (Chairwoman Neubauer)

Chairwoman Neubauer welcomed everyone to the September 17, 2018 meeting.

2. Key Performance Indicators (KPI) Dashboard Quarter 2 – 2018; Summaries & Quarterly
Reports (Jennifer Bergersen, Chief Operations Officer; Pam Erdman, Quality
Assurance Director; Justin Heller, Integrated Services Manager; Edward Warzonek,
Quality Assurance Coordinator; Jim Feagles, Integrated Services Manager; and Dr.
Matt Drymalski, Clinical Program Director)

Overall results for CARS during the second quarter of 2018 have been mixed. The volume
served continues to increase relative to previous quarters. CARS will continue to develop
the Dashboard over time, incorporating metrics within new domains and refining existing
categories.  Acute service utilization and substance abuse metrics remain generally flat.

There was an approximate 20% increase in families served from the 1st to 2nd quarter in
Wraparound Milwaukee.  Refer to dashboard summary.

PCS patient visits continue to decline. The downward trend may be attributed to
alternative interventions such as Team Connect, Crisis Mobile, CART Team expansions,
and additional community based resources.

3. CARS Customer Satisfaction – Mental Health Statistical Improvement Program (MHSIP)
2017 Results (Dr. Denis Birgenheir, CARS Research & Evaluation)

For 2017, CARS maintained the target range of at least 70-80% positive responses for all
MHSIP domains.  New customer satisfaction survey vendor and plan was briefly
discussed.

4. Seclusion and Restraint Quarterly Update Reports (Linda Oczus, Chief Nursing Officer;
Dr. John Schneider, Chief Medical Officer)

12



Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 
Quality Committee 
September 17, 2018 
2 of 3 

Acute adult restraint hourly rate remained the same from 2017 through the second quarter 
of 2018 while restraint and seclusion incident rates have decreased by 20.2% and 7.3% 
during the same time period. CAIS (Child& Adolescent Inpatient Services) and PCS 
restraint hour rates have increased through mid-year 2018.   S&R reduction interventions 
were shared and discussed. 

5. TANF (Temporary Assistance for Needy Families) Alcohol & Other Drug Abuse (AODA) 
Grant – Evaluation Activities (Michelle Bunyer, M.A. Associate Researcher; Dr. Lisa 
Berger, PhD, Director, Center for Urban Population Health) 

Ms. Bunyer presented a brief overview on the TANF & AODA Grant. Key evaluation 
activities were discussed.  Refer to written presentation and audio. 

6. Division Quality Assurance/CMS Survey – Verbal Report  (Dr. John Schneider, Chief 
Medical Officer; Linda Oczus, Chief Nursing Officer; Amy Lorenz, Deputy 
Administrator, CARS)  

There has been no written response received yet from surveyors regarding an alleged 
complaint in the Psychiatric Crisis Service. BHD has initiated improvements based on 
verbal feedback to date.  BHD will continue to comply with all necessary requirements. 

7. PCS Hospital Transfer Waitlist Report: 2018 Mid-Year Update (Richard Wright, Program 
Analyst; Dr. John Schneider, Chief Medical Officer) 

Patient waitlist time continues to be similar as previously reported.  The average length of 
waitlist per patient is 7.1 hours with a median wait time at 5.0. 

8. Policy & Procedure Status Report Update (Lynn Gram, Safety Officer) 

An updated policy and procedure status report as of September 1, 2018 was distributed.  
Positive progress noted.   

9. Next Scheduled Meeting Date. 

• December 3, 2018 at 10:00 a.m.

10.  Adjournment. 

Chairwoman Neubauer ordered the meeting adjourned. 

This meeting was recorded. The official copy of these minutes and subject reports, along with 
the audio recording of this meeting, is available on the Milwaukee County Behavioral Health 
Division/Mental Health Board web page.  



Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 
Quality Committee 
September 17, 2018 
3 of 3 

Length of meeting: 10:04 a.m. – 11:44 a.m. 

Adjourned, 

Kiara Abram  
Executive Assistant  
Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

• The next regular meeting for the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board
Quality Committee is Monday, December 3, 2018 at 10:00 a.m.

Visit the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board Web Page at: 

https://county.milwaukee.gov/EN/DHHS/About/Governance#MCMHBrecords 

ADA accommodation requests should be filed with the Milwaukee County Office for 
Persons with Disabilities, 278-3932 (voice) or 711 (TRS), upon receipt of this notice. 

https://county.milwaukee.gov/EN/DHHS/About/Governance#MCMHBrecords


Quality Committee Item 2



















Quality Committee Item 3





















Quality Committee Item 4

































Quality Committee Item 5







































Quality Committee Item 7

































Quality Committee Item 8



13



























H:\BHD Administrators\Other Documents\Mental Health Board\Schedules\2019\2019 Committee Board Schedule Part I.xlsx

DATE COMMITTEE/BOARD

January 24, 2019, at 4:30 p.m. Mental Health Board (Public Comment/General) - Washington Park 
Senior Center

February 21, 2019, at 7:00 a.m. Finance Committee (Contracts Approval) - Zoofari Conference Center

February 21, 2019, at 8:00 a.m. Mental Health Board - Zoofari Conference Center

March 4, 2019, at 10:00 a.m. Quality Committee - Mental Health Complex

March 21, 2019, at 4:30 p.m. Mental Health Board (Public Comment/Budget) - Washington Park 
Senior Center

March 28, 2019, at 1:30 p.m. Finance Committee (Contracts Approval/Quarterly Meeting) - Mental 
Health Complex 

April 25, 2019, at 8:00 a.m. Mental Health Board - Zoofari Conference Center

June 3, 2019, at 10:00 a.m. Quality Committee - Mental Health Complex

June 6, 2019, at 4:30 p.m. Finance Committee (Public Comment/Budget) - Washington Park 
Senior Center

June 20, 2019, at 7:00 a.m. Finance Committee (Contracts Approval) - Zoofari Conference Center

June 20, 2019, at 8:00 a.m. Mental Health Board - Zoofari Conference Center

June 27, 2019, at 1:30 p.m. Finance Committee (Budget Presentation/Public Comment/Budget 
Approval) - Mental Health Complex

July 11, 2019, at 8:00 a.m. Mental Health Board (Budget Presentation/Approval) - Zoofari 
Conference Center

August 22, 2019, at 7:00 a.m. Finance Committee (Contracts Approval)  - Location TBD

August 22, 2019, at 8:00 a.m. Mental Health Board - Location TBD

September 9, 2019, at 10:00 a.m. Quality Committee - Mental Health Complex

September 12, 2019, at 1:30 p.m. Finance Committee - (Quarterly Meeting)  Mental Health Complex

September 26, 2019, at 4:30 p.m. Mental Health Board (Public Comment/General) - Washington Park 
Senior Center

October 24, 2019, at 7:00 a.m. Finance Committee (Contracts Approval) - Zoofari Conference Center

October 24, 2019, at 8:00 a.m. Mental Health Board - Zoofari Conference Center

December 2, 2019, at 10:00 a.m. Quality Committee - Mental Health Complex

December 5, 2019, at 1:30 p.m. Finance Committee (Contracts Approval/Quarterly Meeeting)  - Mental 
Health Complex

MILWAUKEE COUNTY MENTAL HEALTH BOARD
2019 COMMITTEE/BOARD SCHEDULEDRAFT 14



H:\BHD Administrators\Other Documents\Mental Health Board\Schedules\2019\2019 Committee Board Schedule Part II.xlsx

DATE COMMITTEE/BOARD

December 12, 2019, at 8:00 a.m. Mental Health Board - Zoofari Conference Center

MILWAUKEE COUNTY MENTAL HEALTH BOARD
2019 COMMITTEE/BOARD SCHEDULE



H:\BHD Administrators\Other Documents\Mental Health Board\Schedules\2019\2019 Committee Board Schedule Part I.xlsx


	Item 2
	Item 4
	Item 5
	Item 6
	Item 7
	Item 8
	Item 9
	Item 10
	Item 11
	Item 12
	Item 13
	Item 14



